
CITY OF FRANKLIN 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING* 

FRANKLIN CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN 

AGENDA 
THURSDAY, JANUARY 19, 2017, 7:00 P.M. 

               
 

A.   Call to Order and Roll Call 
 

B.  Approval of Minutes 
 

 1. Approval of regular meeting of January 5, 2017. 
 

C. Public Hearing Business Matters (action may be taken on all matters following  
                                                                      the respective Public Hearing thereon) 

 
1. NEW RAM EXPRESS LLC OVER-THE-ROAD TRUCKING COMPANY 
 BUSINESS.  Special Use application by Milica Rasic, owner, New Ram Express 
 LLC, to operate an over-the-road trucking company business with overnight truck 
 parking at the rear of the property zoned M-1 Limited Industrial District, located 
 at 9563 South 60th Street; Tax Key No. 898-9997-018.  A PUBLIC HEARING 
 IS SCHEDULED FOR THIS MEETING UPON THIS MATTER. 
 [SUBJECT MATTER CONTINUED FROM THE JANUARY 5, 2017 
 MEETING.  THIS PUBLIC HEARING WAS PREVIOUSLY NOTICED 
 FOR, OPENED AND HELD AT THE PLAN COMMISSION MEETING ON 
 JANUARY 5, 2017, AND THEN POSTPONED AND CONTINUED TO 
 THE JANUARY 19, 2017 PLAN COMMISSION MEETING TO ALLOW 
 FOR FURTHER PUBLIC INPUT.] 
   

D. Business Matters (no Public Hearing is required upon the following matters; action may be   
                                           taken on all matters) 

 
1. MILLS HOTEL WYOMING, LLC LAND DIVISION.  Certified Survey Map 

application by Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, for division of an 8.06 acre portion of 
property into three separate lots, the property containing 2 single-family homes and a 
detached accessory building (Lot 1: 1.98 acres, Lot 2: 1.53 acres, Lot 3: 4.55 acres, 
subject property is currently part of the approximately 55 acre property on the south side 
of West Loomis Road), for property zoned R-2 Estate Single-Family Residence (south of 
West Loomis Road) District, R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District and C-1 
Conservancy District (north of West Loomis Road), located at 11906-11908 West 
Loomis Road; Tax Key No. 891-9989-001. 

 
E. Adjournment 

 
*Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City hall during normal business hours. 
 



Franklin Plan Commission Agenda 
1/19/17 
Page 2 
 
**Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have 
decision-making responsibility.  This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even though the 
Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting. 
 
[Note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional 
information, contact the City Clerk’s office at (414) 425-7500.] 
 
REMINDERS: 
Next Regular Plan Commission Meeting: February 9, 2017  



 City of Franklin Unapproved 
Plan Commission Meeting 

January 5, 2017 
Minutes 

 
A. Call to Order and Roll Call Mayor Steve Olson called the January 5, 2017 Regular Plan 

Commission meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers at Franklin City Hall, 9229 West Loomis Road, 
Franklin, Wisconsin. 
 
Present were Commissioners Patrick Leon, Patricia Hogan, 
David Fowler and Kevin Haley, City Engineer Glen Morrow 
and Alderman Mark Dandrea. Also present were Principal 
Planner Nick Fuchs and Planning Manager Joel Dietl.   
 

B. Approval of Minutes 
 

 

1. Regular Meeting of December 22, 
2016. 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded 
approval of the December 22, 2016 minutes of the regular 
meeting of the Plan Commission. On voice vote, all voted 'aye'. 
Motion carried (6-0-0). 
 

C. Public Hearing Business Matters 
 

 

    1.  NEW RAM EXPRESS LLC 
OVER-THE-ROAD TRUCKING 
COMPANY BUSINESS. Special Use 
application by Milica Rasic, owner, New 
Ram Express LLC, to operate an over-
the-road trucking company business with 
overnight truck parking at the rear of the 
property zoned M-1 Limited Industrial 
District, located at 9563 South 60th 
Street; Tax Key No. 898-9997-018. 
 
 
 
 
      
    2.   GLENCASTLE IRISH 
DANCERS, INC.; “DANCE STUDIOS, 
SCHOOLS, AND HALLS” USE 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT.  
 Unified Development Ordinance Text 
Amendment and Special Use applications 
by Steve Anderson, owner, RY Holdings 
Property 300 LLC/ACG Acquisitions #4 
LLC, to amend the Unified Development 
Ordinance text at Table 15-3.0603 
Standard Industrial Classification Title 

Planning Manager Dietl presented the request by Milica Rasic, 
New Ram Express LLC for a special use to operate an over-the-
road trucking company business with overnight truck parking. 
Mr. Dietl noted that the applicant has requested that the item be 
tabled to the next Plan Commission meeting. 
  
The Official Notice of Public Hearing was read in to the record 
by Principal Planner Fuchs and the Public Hearing was opened 
at 7:02 p.m. and closed at 7:02 p.m. 
 
Mayor Olson stated that the public hearing will be postponed 
and the subject matter continued to the January 19, 2017 Plan 
Commission meeting. 
 
 
Planning Manager Dietl presented the request by Steve 
Anderson, owner RY Holdings Property 300 LLC/ACG 
Acquisitions #4 LLLC for a Unified Development Ordinance 
Text Amendment to allow Standard Industrial Classification 
Title No. 7911 “Dance Studios, Schools, and Halls” in the M-1 
District as a Special Use and the Special Use request by Bridget 
Jaskulski, TCRG (Commission Certified Irish Dance Teacher), 
d/b/a Glencastle Irish Dancers, Inc. for the dance school 
business use at 11217 West Forest Home Avenue. 
 
The Official Notices of Public Hearings were read in to the 
record by Principal Planner Fuchs and the Public Hearings were 



Page 2                Plan Commission – Minutes 
                           January 5, 2017  

No. 7911 “Dance  
Studios, Schools, and Halls” to allow for 
such Use as a Special Use, City-wide, in 
the M-1 Limited Industrial District, in 
conjunction with a Special Use 
application for the Bridget Jaskulski, 
TCRG (Commission Certified Irish Dance 
Teacher), d/b/a Glencastle Irish Dancers, 
Inc. business use at 11217 West Forest 
Home Avenue, Suite 4 and 5; Tax Key 
No. 748-9961-001. 

opened at 7:07 p.m. and closed at 7:08 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Fowler moved and Commissioner Hogan 
seconded a motion to recommend approval of an ordinance to 
amend the Unified Development Ordinance Text at Table 15-
3.0603 Standard Industrial Classification title NO. 7911 “Dance 
Studios, Schools, and Halls” to allow for such use as a Special 
Use in the M-1 Limited Industrial District. On voice vote, all 
voted ‘aye’. Motion carried (6-0-0) 
 
Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Fowler 
seconded a motion to recommend approval of a resolution 
imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a 
Special Use for a dance instruction use upon property located at 
11217 West Forest Home Avenue, Suite 4 and 5. On voice 
vote, all voted ‘aye’. Motion carried (6-0-0) 
 
  

D. Business Matters 
 

 

    1.  JEFFREY D. PEELEN AND 
ROXANNE M. PEELEN OUTLOT 
DESIGNATION REMOVAL. Certified 
Survey Map application by Jeffrey D. 
Peelen and Roxanne M. Peelen to remove 
the outlot designation assigned to the 
property pursuant to Resolution No. 2008-
6427 (Outlot 1 of CSM No. 8048) to 
allow the lot to be developed with a 
single-family dwelling, for property 
zoned R-3E Suburban/Estate Single-
Family Residence District, C-1 
Conservancy District and FW Floodway 
District, located at 7145 South Woelfel 
Road; Tax Key No. 754-9994-024. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Manager Dietl presented a Certified Survey Map 
application by Jeffrey D. Peelen and Roxanne M. Peelen to 
remove the outlot designation and to allow the lot to be 
developed with a single-family dwelling. 
 
Commissioner Fowler requested that the minutes reflect that the 
applicant has been made aware of the Floodway District zoning 
on the property and the risk of leaving the zoning intact.   
 
City Engineer Morrow moved and Commissioner Fowler 
seconded a motion to recommend approval of a resolution 
conditionally approving a 1 lot certified survey map, Outlot 1 of 
Certified Survey Map No. 8048, being a part of the Northwest 
¼ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 9, Township 5 North, Range 
21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, 
subject to an amendment to condition No. 6 in the draft 
resolution as set forth before the Plan Commission to provide 
such terms as were proposed by the City Planning Manager as a 
compromise with the applicant such that the C-1 Conservancy 
District be only the subject of an application for rezoning upon 
any application for a permit to build an accessory structure 
upon or adjacent to the C-1 area and at such time that the 
Floodway District also be applied for as part of the rezoning. 
On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’. Motion carried (6-0-0). 
 

E. Adjournment City Engineer Morrow moved and Commissioner Hogan 
seconded to adjourn the Plan Commission meeting of January 
5, 2017 at 7:23 p.m.  All voted ‘aye’; motion carried. 

 



      C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N       

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 

Meeting of January 19, 2017 

 

Special Use 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed special 
use for an over-the-road trucking business use upon property located at 9563 South 60th Street, 
subject to the conditions of approval in the attached draft resolution.        

Project Name:    New Ram Express, LLC Special Use 

Project Address: 9563 South 60th Street 

Applicant: New Ram Express, LLC 

Owners (property): Mallory Improvement Corp. 

Current Zoning: M-1 Limited Industrial District 

2025 Comprehensive Master Plan Industrial  

Use of Surrounding Properties: Industrial (to the north, south and east) and Milwaukee 
County’s Root River Parkway (to the west)  

Applicant Action Requested: Recommendation of approval for the proposed Special Use 
for New Ram Express, LLC to operate at 9563 South 60th 
Street 

 

Please note: 
 Staff recommendations are underlined, in italics and are included in the draft 

ordinance. 
 Staff suggestions are only underlined and are not included in the draft resolution. 

 

 

BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION: 

On January 5, 2016, the Common Council adopted Ordinance No. 2016-2203, which amended 
the Unified Development Ordinance at Table 15-3.0603 Standard Industrial Classification No. 
4213 “Trucking, Except Local” to allow for such use as a Special Use in the M-1 Limited 
Industrial District.  
 
On November 22, 2016, Milica Rasic submitted a Special Use application on behalf of New Ram 
Express, LLC requesting approval to operate an over-the-road trucking business use within an 
existing building located at 9563 South 60th Street. The proposed use corresponds to Standard 
Industrial Classification (SIC) Title No. 4213, Trucking, Except Local, which is allowable in the 
M-1 Limited Industrial District as a Special Use. 
 
On January 5, 2017, the Plan Commission moved to postpone and continue the subject matter 
regarding the New Ram Express, LLC Special Use to the January 19, 2017 Plan Commission 
meeting.  
  
 

   Item C.1. 

 



PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND ANALYSIS: 

The applicant is requesting Special Use approval to operate an over-the-road trucking business 
use within approximately 1,000 square feet of office space at the existing building located at 
9563 South 60th Street. The property is approximately 2.46 acres or 106,970 square feet. The 
building is approximately 22,500 square feet, which consists of approximately 3,750 square feet 
of office space facing South 60th Street, and 18,750 square feet of warehouse space in the rear. 
The applicant is not proposing any changes to the site or the building at this time.  
 
According to the applicant, New Ram Express, LLC is an over-the-road trucking company 
whose trucks travel throughout the United States. The trucks are 53-foot long dry freight vans, 
which typically haul dry goods such as canned food, paper towels, scrap metal, etc. The 
company uses their leased portion of the existing building as a dispatch office and the gravel 
portion of the property for parking semi trucks and trailers. According to the applicant there are 
seven (7) employees working in the office. Hours of operation for the business are Monday 
through Friday from 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. and Saturday from 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.  
 
Parking: 
Table 15-5.0203 of the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance defines requirements 
for off-street parking. According to this section, Trucking (no loading or warehousing) is 
required to provide 1.5 spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area (GFA). If one applies this 
standard, then the proposed 1,000 square foot over-the-road trucking business use would be 
required to provide a minimum of two (2) off-street parking spaces.  
 
The east parking lot at 9563 South 60th Street has twenty (20) striped parking stalls, which is 
enough to accommodate the New Ram Express, LLC employees. From Staff’s review of the 
2015 aerial photograph of the City of Franklin, the parking stalls at 9563 South 60th Street appear 
to be partially located within the South 60th Street right-of-way. Further review of historical 
aerial photographs shows the parking stalls used to be along the front of the building. Staff 
estimates the parking stalls were restriped in their present location between 2005 and 2007. Staff 
suggests Mallory Improvement Corp remove the existing parking stalls at 9563 South 60th Street 
from the South 60th Street right-of-way, and restripe the parking stalls in accordance with Section 
15-5.0202 of the Unified Development Ordinance.  
 
According to the Project Narrative, there could be as many as ten (10) semi-trucks and trailers 
parked on the property at one time. The applicant has not depicted how ten (10) semi-tractors 
could fit on the property at one time on the proposed Site Plan. According to the applicant, some 
of the trucks are out on the road at any given time, which reduces the odds of all ten trucks being 
on the property at once. The applicant has indicated they use the driveway on the north side of 
the existing building for ingress and egress to South 60th Street. Staff recommends the 
installation of precast truck wheel stops for each of the ten (10) truck parking spaces in the 
existing gravel lot, to ensure trailers do not encroach onto Milwaukee County’s property to the 
west.  
 
Staff also recommends the installation of vinyl slats, of a type and color to be reviewed and 
approved by Staff, into the existing 6-foot tall chain link fence on the south and east sides of the 
building to screen the semi-truck and trailer parking area from the view of the public. 



 
Landscaping: 
Per Table 15-3.0309 of the Unified Development Ordinance, the M-1 Limited Industrial District 
requires a minimum Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR) of 0.4, or 40% of the lot. As previously 
stated, 9563 S. 60th Street is approximately 2.46 acres or 106,970 square feet. According to the 
M-1 Limited Industrial District Standard, this property should have a minimum of 0.984 acres or 
42,863.04 square feet of landscaped surface.  
 
Staff suggests Mallory Improvement Corp. submit a revised site plan, meeting the minimum 
Landscape Surface Ratio standard of the M-1 Limited Industrial District, to the Department of 
City Development Staff, for its review and approval for Code and purpose compliance.  
 
Staff suggests Mallory Improvement Corp. install turf-grass lawn along the north, west, and 
south property lines of 9563 South 60th Street to move closer to compliance with the minimum 
Landscape Surface Ratio requirement of 0.984 acres.  
 
Per Section 15-5.0302 of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), the minimum number of 
standard plant units for an industrial site is 1 per 10 provided parking spaces. Based on twenty 
(20) existing parking stalls, this property would be required to have at least two (2) shade trees, 
two (2) evergreens, two (2) decorative trees, and two (2) shrubs. However, Section 15-5.0302B3 
of the UDO states, “The minimum number of plantings shall be 5 per property for each type.” 
Currently, this property has no approved landscaping. Eight (8) evergreens and three (3) shade 
trees were planted in the South 60th Street right-of-way between 2005 and 2007 (around the same 
time the parking lot was re-striped). While staff appreciates the effort to add landscaping to the 
site, the City does not allow landscaping in the public right-of-way. Staff suggests Mallory 
Improvement Corp. remove the eleven (11) trees from the South 60th Street right-of-way, and 
provide new plantings at 9563 S. 60th Street in accordance with the minimum number of standard 
plant units prescribed by Section 15-5.0302 of the Unified Development Ordinance. To the 
extent possible, existing trees should be saved and transplanted elsewhere on the site.  
 
Dumpster Enclosure: 
According to Section 15-3.0803I of the Unified Development Ordinance, “All garbage cans, 
trash dumpsters, trash containers, and other storage devises situated on any property shall be 
closed containers with lids and shall be concealed or suitably screened from public view. Sight-
proof fencing (wood or masonry) and landscaping shall be used to totally obstruct vision into the 
storage areas. Where such facilities are provided outside of a building, they shall be screened 
from public rights-of-way and adjacent property by an enclosure constructed of materials 
compatible with the materials on the front building wall of the main building.” Currently, an 
unscreened dumpster is being stored outside on the north side of the building. Therefore, Staff 
recommends any refuse containers being stored outside of the building at 9563 South 60th Street 
shall be removed from the property. Staff suggests Mallory Improvement Corp. submit a revised 
site plan indicating the location of a dumpster enclosure, and a dumpster enclosure elevation 
drawing to the Department of City Development for review and approval by Staff.  
 
Section 15-3.0701(A) and (C) of the UDO contains the General Standards and Considerations 
that must be examined for each proposed Special Use prior to granting approval. The applicant 
has provided a written response to these standards, which is included in your packet.  



 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed special use for an over-the-road 
trucking business use upon property located at 9563 South 60th Street, subject to the conditions 
of approval in the attached draft resolution.  
 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
                 [Draft 1-11-16] 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS  
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR AN OVER-THE-ROAD  
TRUCKING COMPANY BUSINESS USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED  

AT 9563 SOUTH 60TH STREET 
(MILICA RASIC, OWNER, NEW RAM EXPRESS LLC, APPLICANT) 

              
 
 WHEREAS, Milica Rasic, owner, New Ram Express LLC, having petitioned the City 
of Franklin for the approval of a Special Use within an M-1 Limited Industrial District under 
Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 4213 “Trucking, Except Local”, to allow for an 
over-the-road trucking company business use, with a maximum of ten trucks and trailers 
parked overnight at the rear of the property located at 9563 South 60th Street, bearing Tax 
Key No. 898-9997-018, more particularly described as follows:  
 

Parcel 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 4929 being a Re-division of Parcel 2 of 
Certified Survey Map No. 4144, being a Re-division of Parcel 1 of Certified 
Survey Map No. 2247 of lands in the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of 
Section 27, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, 
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin; and 
 

 WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the 
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the 
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan 
Commission on the 5th day of January, 2017, and the Plan Commission thereafter having 
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain 
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon 
such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in 
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive 
Master Plan; that it will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it 
will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that it will be served 
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it will not cause undue traffic 
congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of significant importance to 
nature, history or the like; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission 
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions, 
meets the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of 
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Milica Rasic, owner, New Ram Express 
LLC, for the approval of a Special Use for the property particularly described in the   



MILICA RASIC, OWNER, NEW RAM EXPRESS LLC – SPECIAL USE 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-_____ 
Page 2 
 
preamble to this Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following 
conditions and restrictions: 

 
1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by Milica 

Rasic, owner, New Ram Express LLC, successors and assigns, as an over-the-road 
trucking company business use, which shall be developed in substantial compliance 
with, and operated and maintained by Milica Rasic, owner, New Ram Express LLC, 
pursuant to those plans City file-stamped November 22, 2016 and annexed hereto and 
incorporated herein as Exhibit A.   

2. Milica Rasic, owner, New Ram Express LLC, successors and assigns, shall pay to the 
City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review 
fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of 
Franklin, for the New Ram Express LLC over-the-road trucking company business, 
within 30 days of invoice for same.  Any violation of this provision shall be a 
violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof 
and §1-19. of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as 
amended from time to time. 

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Milica Rasic, owner, New Ram 
Express LLC and the over-the-road trucking company business use for the property 
located at 9563 South 60th Street: (i) being in compliance with all applicable 
governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all 
other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and 
applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval. 

4. Precast truck wheel stops shall be installed for each of the ten (10) truck parking 
spaces in the existing gravel lot on the west side of the building, to ensure parked 
trailers do not encroach onto Milwaukee County’s property to the west. 

5. Vinyl slats of a type and color to be reviewed and approved by Staff shall be installed 
into the existing 6-foot tall chain-link fence on the south and east sides of the building 
to screen the semi-truck and trailer parking area from the view of the public. 

6. Any dumpster being stored outside of the building shall either be removed from the 
property or moved into the building.    

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Milica Rasic, owner, New Ram 
Express LLC, successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply 
with one or any of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a 
ten (10) day notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common 
Council, upon notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this 
Resolution. 



MILICA RASIC, OWNER, NEW RAM EXPRESS LLC – SPECIAL USE 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-_____ 
Page 3 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or 
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the 
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19. of the 
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than 
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as 
may be specified therein from time to time.  Each day that such violation continues shall be a 
separate violation.  Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of 
that or any other violation. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such 
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified Development 
Ordinance. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to §15-9.0103G. of the Unified 
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall 
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution, 
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit 
for such use. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain 
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. 
  
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of ____________________, 2017. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2017. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
ATTEST:      Stephen R. Olson, Mayor 
 
 
__________________________________       
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

9563 S. 60th Street
TKN: 898 9997 018

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

M-1 

P-1 

FW  

A-1 B-3 
A-1 

60
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

 

N

Property

2016 Aerial Photo

0 230 460115 Feet



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

9563 S. 60th Street
TKN: 898 9997 018

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

S  
 60

TH
   S

T

SERVICE    RDW     RYAN     RD

RYAN                           RD  

60
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

 

N

Property

2016 Aerial Photo

0 230 460115 Feet









      C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N       
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
Meeting of January 19, 2017 

 
Certified Survey Map 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed 
Certified Survey Map, subject to the conditions in the draft resolutions.          

Project Name:  Mills Hotel Wyoming LLC Certified Survey Map  

Project Address: 11906 & 11908 West Loomis Road 

Applicant: Daniel Szczap, Bear Development LLC 

Owners (property): Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC 

Current Zoning: R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District and C-1 
Conservancy District 

2025 Future Land Use: Commercial, Areas of Natural Resource Features and 
Water 

Use of Surrounding Properties: Single-family residential to the north, vacant land to the 
south (zoned R-2), single-family residential (zoned R-8) to 
the east and vacant land (zoned R-8) to the west 

Applicant Action Requested: Recommendation of approval to the Common Council of 
the proposed Certified Surrey Map 

 

INTRODUCTION 
Please note: 

• Staff recommendations are underlined, in italics and are included in the draft 
ordinance. 

• Staff suggestions are only underlined and are not included in the draft resolution. 
 
On November 14, 2016, the applicant filed a Certified Survey Map (CSM) requesting to 
subdivide the property located at 11906 and 11908 W. Loomis Road, Tax Key No. 891-9989-
001. The subject property is currently split by West Loomis Road with approximately 8.07 acres 
located on the north side of W. Loomis Road (as shown on the CSM) and about 54.52 acres 
located on the south side of W. Loomis Road. The applicant is proposing to subdivide the 
northern portion of land into three separate lots, leaving the larger area as a remnant piece of 
land.  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION/ANALYSIS 
Certified Survey Map (CSM): 
The proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) will divide the portion of property north of W. 
Looms Road (approximately 351,346 square feet or 8.0657 acres) into three separate lots. The 
existing property consists of two single-family residential dwellings, a pond and other protected 
natural resource features, which are discussed further below in this report.  
 

Item D.1. 



 2 

Lot 1 has an area of 86,335 square feet and consists of one of the existing single-family homes. 
Lot 2 has an area of 66,858 square feet and also contains an existing single-family home. Lot 3 is 
198,153 square feet and is currently vacant.  
 
The existing homes and accessory buildings conform to R-8 District setbacks and accessory 
structure standards. 
 
The CSM includes 20-foot wide shared access easements on Lot 1 and Lot 2 to accommodate the 
existing driveway configuration. Staff preferred separate driveways; however, Section 15-5.0202 
of the UDO does allow for shared driveways and setbacks to be waived. Additionally, the 
applicant discussed relocating driveways with the Wisconsin Department of Transportation 
(WisDOT); however, WisDOT did not want to consider these driveway locations without also 
considering the development and access to the land on the south side of W. Loomis Road. The 
applicant’s do not currently have plans for that portion of the property; therefore, they are not 
able to get permission to relocate the drives. 
 

Shared Driveway Setbacks. Where a shared driveway between neighboring lots or parcels 
is provided to serve as access to a State or County Highway for the purposes of highway 
safety as approved by either the Wisconsin Department of Transportation or Milwaukee 
County Highway Department, any minimum driveway setback as required by the Zoning 
Ordinance shall be waived, given that such waiver of setback is for the shared driveway that 
is constructed over or abutting property lines of lots or parcels that benefit from the shared 
driveway. All other driveways on such lots or parcels shall conform to required setbacks.  

 
Staff recommends that the applicant submit the ingress/egress easement for recording at the time 
of recording of the CSM. The applicant shall provide the City with a copy of the recorded 
ingress/egress easement. 
 
Staff anticipates that the applicant will file another CSM in the future to further subdivide Lot 3. 
The number of lots proposed will depend upon the results of a detailed Natural Resource 
Protection Plan (NRPP). Staff would anticipate anywhere between two to four lots. As a detailed 
NRPP has not yet been completed, staff suggests that this portion of the CSM be shown as an 
Outlot, as opposed to a buildable lot.  
 
Zoning and Land Use 
The property is currently zoned R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District and is designated as 
Commercial, Water and Areas of Natural Resource Features on the City’s 2025 Future Land Use 
Map.  
 
The applicant is proposing to keep the R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District zoning and is not 
proposing an amendment to the Comprehensive Master Plan. The applicant has indicated that a 
potential concept for the lots may be to add a second principal dwelling to Lots 1 and 2. The 
applicant has noted that this will likely depend on the desires of a potential buyer. Per Table 15-
3.0602 of the UDO, one-family detached dwellings are allowed in the R-8 Residence District as 
a Special Use. Per the Assessor’s records, one of the homes was constructed in 1900 and the 
other in 1940. The existing homes do not currently have Special Uses; therefore, they are legal 
nonconforming uses.  



 3 

 
As the property is currently utilized for single-family uses and that use being likely to remain in 
the future, the Plan Commission may consider requiring the applicant to rezone the property to a 
single-family residential zoning district, likely R-3 Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence 
District as there is R-3 District zoning adjacent to the subject parcel. Staff does not object to 
multi-family zoning and land use in this area; but as single-family uses are likely to remain, staff 
would suggest that the subject property be rezoned to R-3 prior to recording the CSM. 
 
If rezoned, staff recommends that the C-1 Conservancy District also be rezoned to the 
appropriate residential zoning district and all protected natural resource features be placed within 
a conservation easement.  
 
The future development of Lot 3 into multiple single-family residential lots will require special 
use approval for each home, or the property will have to be rezoned to the R-3 District and a 
CSM or subdivision plat approved. Staff anticipates that upon submittal of an application to 
further develop or construct any homes on Lot 3, that Lot 3 be rezoned to R-3, including the C-1 
District as noted above.  
 
Furthermore, upon any application to rezone Lots 1, 2 or 3, staff would require submittal of a 
Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment Application to amend the Future Land Use for all three 
lots from Commercial and Areas of Natural Resource Features to Residential or Residential – 
Multi-Family and Areas of Natural Resource Features.  
 
As there is no new development or rezoning proposed at this time, staff is not objecting to 
addressing the zoning and future land use at the time Lot 3 is subdivided or developed. The 
applicant has included a note on Sheet 2 of the CSM stating, “The C-1 Conservation District 
zoning to be rezoned to an appropriate zoning district with all protected natural resources being 
protected by Conservation Easement upon the development of Lot 3.”  
 
Finally, staff notes that the vast majority of C-1 District zoning is located on Lot 3, although a 
portion does extend onto the rear yards of Lots 1 and 2. As such, staff recommends that the note 
be revised to include Lots 1 and 2 as well as Lot 3. The note will then at least notify that the 
future owners of Lots 1 and 2 that the City, at some point, may rezone the C-1 District.   
 
Sewer and Water 
Currently Lot 1 and Lot 2 are not served by public sewer or water facilities. Staff recommends 
that the applicant add a note to the CSM, prior to recording with the Milwaukee County Register 
of Deeds, indicating that Lot 1 and Lot 2 are not served by public sewer and water facilities and 
Common Council approval of development without public facilities is required upon any future 
development. 
 
Lot 3, as noted on the CSM, is served by public sanitary sewer; public water is not available in 
this area and will connect when becomes available.”  
 
Staff also recommends that the applicant add language to the sewer and water note on the CSM 
prior to recording with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, stating that the property owner 



 4 

of Lot 3 will be assessed and required to connect to public sewer and water facilities once they 
become available. 
 
In addition, staff recommends that the applicant show the septic and mound system locations on 
the CSM, prior to recording with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds. 
 
Natural Resource Protection Plan: 
The applicant has provided a Wetland Delineation Report, dated March 19, 2015, from R.A. 
Smith National, Inc. The report was sent to the WDNR and Army Corps of Engineers; however, 
staff has not yet received the concurrence letter. Staff recommends that the applicant submit a 
letter from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources indicating concurrence of the 
wetland delineations prior to recording of this CSM with the Milwaukee County Register of 
Deeds. Staff also recommends that the Certified Survey Map be revised to show the detail of the 
wetlands with bearings and distances (Wetland Table) on a separate sheet. 
 
All three proposed lots consist of a portion of the pond, wetland, wetland buffer and setback and 
the 75-foot shore buffer. Lot 1 also has steep slopes, which are located around the building 
located furthest west on the property. The majority of the steep slopes are 10-19%, which carry a 
protection standard of 60%. A small portion, approximately 669 square feet, is 20-30% slopes, 
which carry a protection standard of 75%.  
 
Per the UDO, these protection standards must be met unless the slope has an area of 5,000 square 
feet or less or is man-made. The applicant does not wish to include the steep slopes within the 
conservation easement and believes the steep slopes are man-made; however, staff does not find 
that sufficient evidence has been presented to meet the exclusion of man-made. Therefore, staff 
recommends that the required portion (or greater) of the steep slopes located on Lot 1 be 
included in and protected as part of the conservation easement. The CSM shall be revised 
accordingly, prior to recording with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds. 
 
A detailed NRPP was not completed for Lot 3. As noted on the CSM, a detailed NRPP is 
required. Staff recommends adding “upon further development” to the end of that note. 
 
The applicant shall submit a written Conservation Easement document for Common Council 
review and approval and recording with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed Certified Survey Map, subject to 
the conditions in the draft resolutions. 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
                   [Draft 1-12-17] 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 3 LOT CERTIFIED  
SURVEY MAP, BEING PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF 

SECTION 30, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, 
MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN  

(MILLS HOTEL WYOMING, LLC, APPLICANT) 
(11906-11908 WEST LOOMIS ROAD) 

              
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for 
approval of a certified survey map, such map being part of the Northeast 1/4 of the 
Northwest 1/4 of Section 30, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, 
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, more specifically, of the property located at 11906-11908 
West Loomis Road, bearing Tax Key No. 891-9989-001, Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, 
applicant; said certified survey map having been reviewed by the City Plan Commission and 
the Plan Commission having recommended approval thereof pursuant to certain conditions; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such application and Plan 
Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that such 
proposed certified survey map is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain 
conditions. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of 
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Certified Survey Map submitted by Mills Hotel 
Wyoming, LLC, as described above, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

1. That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by 
Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agencies, shall be satisfied and 
made by the applicant, prior to recording. 

 
2. That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this 

Resolution shall be subject to impact fees imposed pursuant to §92-9. of the 
Municipal Code or development fees imposed pursuant to §15-5.0110 of the Unified 
Development Ordinance, both such provisions being applicable to the development 
and building permitted or resulting hereunder as it occurs from time to time, as such 
Code and Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time. 

 
3. Each and any easement shown on the Certified Survey Map shall be the subject of 

separate written grant of easement instrument, in such form as provided within the 
City of Franklin Design Standards and Construction Specifications and such form  



MILLS HOTEL WYOMING, LLC – CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-_____ 
Page 2 

 
 and content as may otherwise be reasonably required by the City Engineer or 
 designee to further and secure the purpose of the easement, and all being subject to 
 the approval of the Common Council, prior to the recording of the Certified Survey 
 Map. 

 
4. Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, successors and assigns, and any developer of the Mills 

Hotel Wyoming, LLC 3 lot certified survey map project, shall pay to the City of 
Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees 
incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, 
within 30 days of invoice for same.  Any violation of this provision shall be a 
violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof 
and §1-19. of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as 
amended from time to time. 

5. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC and 
the 3 lot certified survey map project for the property located at 11906-11908 West 
Loomis Road: (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, 
rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental 
approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to 
be developed and as presented for this approval. 

6. The note on Sheet 2 regarding the future rezoning of the C-1 District for Lot 3 shall 
be revised or an additional note added to also include the rezoning of the C-1 District 
for Lot 1 and Lot 2, prior to recording with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds. 

7. A note shall be added to the Certified Survey Map, prior to recording with the 
Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, indicating that Lot 1 and Lot 2 are not served 
by public sewer and water facilities and Common Council approval of development 
without public facilities is required upon any future development. 

8. Language shall be added to the sewer and water note on the Certified Survey Map, 
prior to recording with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, stating that the 
property owner of Lot 3 will be assessed and required to connect to public sewer and 
water facilities once they become available. 

9. The Certified Survey Map shall be revised to show the septic and mound system 
locations, prior to recording with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds. 

10. The applicant shall submit a letter from the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources indicating concurrence of the wetland delineations prior to recording the 
Certified Survey Map with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds.  



MILLS HOTEL WYOMING, LLC – CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-_____ 
Page 3 

 
11. The Certified Survey Map shall be revised to show the detail of the wetlands with 

bearings and distances (Wetland Table) on a separate sheet, prior to recording with 
the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds. 

12. The Unified Development Ordinance required percentage (or greater) of the steep 
slopes located on Lot 1 shall be included in and protected as part of the conservation 
easement.  The CSM and Conservation Easement shall be revised accordingly, prior 
to recording with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds. 

13. Prior to recording the CSM with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, the note 
on Sheet 2 requiring a detailed Natural Resource Protection Plan for Lot 3 shall be 
revised to state, “A detailed Natural Resource Protection Plan for Lot 3 is required 
upon further development.” 

14. The applicant shall submit a written Conservation Easement document for Common 
Council review and approval and recording with the Milwaukee County Register of 
Deeds. 

15. The applicant shall submit the ingress/egress easement for recording at the time of 
recording of the Certified Survey Map with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds. 
The applicant shall provide the City with a copy of the recorded ingress/egress 
easement. 

 
       BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner, 
Mills Hotel Wyoming, LLC, be and the same is hereby rejected without final approval and 
without any further action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than one of the above 
conditions is or are not met and satisfied within 180 days from the date of adoption of this 
Resolution. 
 
 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions 
within 180 days of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constituting final approval, 
and pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and 
procedures for the recording of a certified survey map, the City Clerk is hereby directed to 
obtain the recording of the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner, Mills Hotel Wyoming, 
LLC, with the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County. 

 
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of ____________________, 2017. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2017. 



MILLS HOTEL WYOMING, LLC – CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-_____ 
Page 4 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       Stephen R. Olson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________       
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 
 
 
 
 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

11906-11908 W. Loomis Road
TKN: 891 9989 001

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

R-2 

R-3 

R-8 
R-2 

B-2 

R-3 

C-1 

R-8 

R-2 

A-2 

R-1 

C-1 

C-1 

C-1 

C-1 

R-8 

C-1 

FW  

R-3 

11
2T

H 
    

    
    

    
    

    
 ST

   

N

Property

2016 Aerial Photo

0 925 1,850462.5 Feet

nickf
Line

nickf
Line



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

11906-11908 W. Loomis Road
TKN: 891 9989 001

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

W   LOOMIS    RD

W    L
OOMIS

S  
    

11
2T

H 
    

ST

USH
 45

  /   
 STH 36

W  LOOMIS CT.  

W    RYAN   RD W   RYAN   RD

W     
 LOOMIS     

RD

S  
 11

6T
H 

  S
T

S  
  1

24
TH

    
 ST

S  
    

11
2T

H 
    

 ST

CTH H

STH 36  /  U
SH 45

RD

W  LOOMIS  RD

11
2T

H 
    

    
    

    
    

    
 ST

   

N

Property

2016 Aerial Photo

0 925 1,850462.5 Feet

nickf
Line

nickf
Line






































	2017-0119 Plan Commission Agenda (revised, NJF)
	FRANKLIN CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
	9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

	2017-0105 PC Minutes Draft (revised, NJF)
	2017-0119 PC - Item C.1.
	1 PC Report
	2 RES
	3 Locator Map
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map_Locator

	4 Project Summary
	5 Site Plan
	6 Exterior Elevation

	2017-0119 PC - Item D.1. (reduced)
	2017-0119 PC Report - Bear CSM
	2017-0119 RES Mills Hotel Wyoming LLC CSM (1-12-17)
	Planning Map_Combined - 2
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map_Locator

	Project Summary
	CSM
	NRPP
	Easement Exhibit
	Conservation Easement
	Calculation of Base Site Area


